

                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


 


                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 


  
 


  


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem 


Mark Bond • Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • John Steckler 


   


 


Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days prior to 
the meeting.  


 


The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  


 


To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and residency for 
the official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be 
at the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  


 


Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  


   


 


Next Ordinance No. 2019-846 


Next Resolution No. 2019-578 


February 5, 2019 


City Council Meeting 


6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 


B. City Council Interviews and Appointment  


(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 


(Confidential Session of the Council) 
 


C. • To evaluate the qualifications of a candidate for appointment to elected officer per RCW 
42.30.110(1)(h) 







  


Action may or may not be taken.   
 
NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED 
 


D. Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services 


(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
REPORTS 
 


E. Mayor/Council  
 


F. City Manager 


• Council Planning Schedule   
 


G. Staff 


• Park & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2018 


• Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of November 15, 2018  
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


H. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Page 2 of 57







MlirCreek Agenda Item # B
WASHINGTON IMeeting Date: February 5, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: CITY COUNCIL INTERVIEWS & APPOINTMENT


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


Mill Creek City Council Position No. 2 is currently vacant. Effective December 12, 2018, the


City Council began taking applications from those interested in filling the vacancy. Applications
were due by 5:00 p.m. on January 31, 2019. The City received seven applications.


Initial Interviews - The following process may be utilized by the Council for the conduct of


initial applicant interviews.


1. Applicants will be interviewed in alphabetical order. The City Council respectfully
requests that all applicants remain outside the council chambers until each applicant is


called for his/her specific interview. After completion of their interview, applicants are


invited to attend the remainder of the public meeting.


2. The initial interview round will be 15 minutes per applicant, including the applicant's


opening statement.


a. Each applicant will be given 2 minutes to make an opening statement. Only the


applicant may speak on his or her behalf. The City Clerk shall alert the Council
when 2 minutes has expired.


b. After the applicant's opening statement, the Council will interview the applicant.


Note: The City Manager -will provide a list of candidate questions to the Council


prior to the interview session.
c. The City Clerk shall alert the Council when 1 5 minutes has expired.


3. After completion of applicant interviews, pursuant to RCW42.30.HO, the City Council
may adjourn to the Council's Executive Session Chambers to discuss the qualifications of


the candidates.


Final Interviews (if desired) - The following process may be utilized by the Council for the


selection of applicants to advance to the finalist round.


1. After any executive session, the Council shall reconvene to regular session and nominate


applicants to advance to the finalist round.
(


a. Any member of the Council may nominate any candidate(s) to progress to the


finalist round.


b. Nominations shall require a second to place the nominee in contention for


selection as a finalist.
c. A simple majority vote of the Council will move the nominated candidate to


finalist status.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 3 of 57







2. After selection of finalists, the Council shall determine whether it wishes to hold an


additional round of interviews on a separate date.


3. If the Council does not feel an additional round of interviews is necessary, the Council


shall proceed with nominating finalists for appointment to the Mill Creek City Council.


Appointment - The following process may be utilized by the Council for appointment of a
finalist to City Council Position No. 2.


1. Any member of the City Council may nominate any finalist(s) for appointment to City
Council Position No. 2.


2. Nominations shall require a second to place the nominee in contention for selection.


3. At the close of nominations, the City Clerk shall place the names of all nominated


candidates on a written ballot, shall designate the ballot as "Ballot #1, and shall distribute
the ballot to each Councilmember.


4. The Council shall vote on the written ballot provided by the City Clerk with each
Councilmember casting one (1) vote for the candidate of his/her choosing (or writing
"abstain" on the ballot).


5. The ballot shall be signed by the Councilmember casting the vote and all ballots shall be
collected by the City Clerk and tabulated. The City Manager shall witness the tabulation.


6. The City Manager shall announce the names of each nominee, the number of votes


received, and the Councilmembers voting for that nominee.


7. If no nominee obtains at least four votes of the Council, the nominee(s) receiving the


lowest number of votes shall be removed from the ballot, provided that at least two
nominees shall move forward to the next ballot.


8. The City Clerk shall prepare the next ballot, which shall contain the names of the
remaining nominees and shall be designated as "Ballot #2." The Council shall vote on


that ballot in the manner provided above.


9. Ballot preparation and voting shall continue in the above manner until one nominee
receives at least four votes of the Council.


10, All ballots from all rounds shall be retained by the City Clerk as part of the record and
shall be available for public inspection at the close of the meeting.


11. The successful nominee shall be sworn in by the City Manager.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 4 of 57







Candidate Interview Schedule - The following schedule will ensure an efficient and


effective interview process:


6:05 - 6:20 Interview: Kelly Christensen, Candidate 1


6:20 - 6:35 Interview: Steve Covello, Candidate 2


6:35-6:50 Interview: Elaine Craig, Candidate 3


6:50 - 7:05 Interview: Carmen Fisher, Candidate 4
7:05 - 7:20 Interview: Richard Huebner, Candidate 5


7:20-7:35 Interview: Stephanie Vignal, Candidate 7


Neal Shulman, Candidate 6, is not available to interview.


ATTACHMENTS:


• Applications
• Council Candidate Recruitment Brochure for Position No. 2


Respectfully Subptf^ed:


fobert 8. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 5 of 57







 


 


City Council Position #2 


 


Candidate 1:  


Kelly Christensen 


 


 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 6 of 57







Attn: City Manager, Mr. Bob Stowe
City of Mill Creek
15728 Main St., Mill Creek, 
WA 98012


January 31, 2019


Dear Mr. Stowe,


Regarding the current vacancy on the Mill Creek City Council, I hereby provide notice of interest in 
filling the vacancy for the term defined on the City of Mill Creek website through the end of 2019.  I 
have lived and voted in Mill Creek for approximately 10 years.  I am a high school graduate with some 
years of college, but no degree as of yet.


I currently act as CEO of StratosAudio, Inc. a Delaware corporation registered in the State of 
Washington.  StratosAudio controls and manages intellectual property in twenty-one countries.  
Performing the many duties associated with this responsibility, I have managed budgets in both product 
development and legal aspects totaling millions of dollars.


My interest in serving with the Mill Creek City Council is to apply the skills I have acquired in 
managing budgets and meeting deadlines to the benefit of the city.


I also have a sincere interest in coordinating with Snohomish County and the City of Lynnwood 
regarding traffic mitigation.  Quality of life in Mill Creek is also of great interest, specifically in 
regards to access to natural spaces.


Please consider my willingness to serve in your selection process.  If you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact me.


Regards,


Kelly Christensen
 


Mill Creek, WA 98012
Mobile ring to number: 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 7 of 57







 


 


City Council Position #2 


 


Candidate 2:  


Steve Covello 


 


 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 8 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 9 of 57







From: .com
To: City Manager
Subject: Addition To Covello Letter Of Interest
Date: Thursday, January 31, 2019 4:38:05 PM
Importance: High


Gina,


Here is an addition to accompany my letter of interest in the City of Mill Creek City Council
Position #2 that more directly answers the supplemental questions that were not completely
covered in my initial letter of interest.


My working and communication style is open and transparent.  I would want to foster open
communication and collaboration on issues, processes and discussions.  I feel that every ones
opinion should matter, be heard and be respected.  This position it is not about the person but
what is best for the city moving forward collaboratively as a team.  The City Council, City
Manager and Mayor need to be a cohesive team.


In regards to any ideas I have with the STAR Values and if I feel a change is needed.  At this
time I do not feel anything needs to be changed.  It would be alarming if I felt written and
stated principles and values needed changing before I even had a chance to fully get involved
within the council.


I hope this answers everything that was asked.  I do welcome, and anticipate going into further
detail at a later date as I am sure that all applicants will need to go into as much detail as to
satisfy all the questions of anyone that is taking part in this important decision of filling
Council Position #2.


Gina, can you please send me a response that you did receive this email?


Thank you SO much for your time and attention on this.


Thank You


Steve Covello


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 10 of 57







 


 


City Council Position #2 


 


Candidate 3:  


Elaine Craig 


 


 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 11 of 57







Mill Creek City Council Position #2 


Elaine Craig 


( ) -  


   


Mill Creek, WA  98012 


Registered Voter/18 year resident of Mill Creek 


Professional Summary 


Motivated, dedicated professional with over 38 years experience in planning and executing trade 


shows, special events, budget planning, staff and sales management.  Possessing extensive experience 


working the events management industry with the exceptional ability to analyze potential problems 


and realize solutions.  Well versed in public speaking. 


Work and Education Summary 


Self Employed.  Craig Productions Event Promotions. 1983 – present 


Personal trainer, NPC/IFBB Bodybuilding judge.   


Ongoing education classes relating to aesthetics and anti-aging. 


Licensed Medical Esthetician.  Paroba College. 2016 – 2017. 


NASM Certified Personal Trainer.  National Academy Sports Medicine. 1990 


Wife (35 years)  and stay at home mom 1988 - 2006.  


Gym Owner 1981 - 1984 


3 Years College. 1977 – 1980 


High School Diploma. 1976. 


Retail Sales/waitressing on and off from 1974 - 1981 


Volunteer Service 


2012 – present:  2x monthly in the production room at Gold Creek Community Church.  I work with a 


team running Sunday’s production.  


2009 – 2011:  Co-leader for Primetime ministry at Maltby Christian Church Wednesday mornings. 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 12 of 57







1995 – 2000:  Organized and ran the Jogathon at Heritage Christian School. 


1998 & 1999 – Read children’s stories at the Everett Women’s Shelter 


 


Written Responses 


I love the lifestyle of Mill Creek.  I love the cleanliness and beauty of my city.  I love that Mill Creek has 


something to offer everyone.  We have  a Towne Center with a variety of restaurants and shops.  I love 


that we have a library, a sports complex, fields, parks, walking trails and a senior center.   I love that the 


City has a standard, that we have codes and CC&R’s.    


 


I am interested in serving on the City Council so that I can give back to my community. I am a hard 


worker, a quick learner and I have skills and insights that I know would be useful  in working with my 


fellow council members .  I conduct myself with commitment and integrity.  


 


My 38 years of event planning and production have taught me to set a goal, do my homework, work 


within a time frame and stay within a budget.  There are no excuses.  The show must go on.    


I have an open communication style, I am a team player, I am positive and friendly.  I have a can-do 


attitude and my goal is to create a win-win situation for everyone.  


 


I have ample time to give to the City Council.  I work part time from home and my schedule is flexible.  


 


 


 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 13 of 57







 


 


City Council Position #2 


 


Candidate 4:  


Carmen Fisher 


 


 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 14 of 57







Carmen Fisher


Mill Creek, WA 98012
( ) -


To the Mill Creek City Council:


I am writing to establish interest in appointment to the Position #2 vacancy. I am a registered voter, and
have lived at my current address since 2015. Since my application to the previous vacancy, I have 
worked to contribute to the community by engaging with the Mill Creek Police Department, in three 
ways. I attended every class of the 2018 Citizen's Police Academy. I have volunteered to assist with 
traffic for every parade since graduation. And, I have joined the Mill Creek Police Foundation, recently
co-hosting the first of an annual Spouse's Appreciation Luncheon. I hope to join the Citizen's Patrol as 
soon as positions are available.


My Bachelor of the Arts (1999) and Jurist Doctorate (2003, cum laude) degrees were both earned in my
home state at Indiana University, Bloomington. I passed the Indiana Bar Exam in 2004. Afterward, I 
worked as an LSAT instructor and teacher trainer at Kaplan Test Prep, and opened a poker supplies 
store in the local mall.


On December 23, 2007, I ate a piece of sushi that contained a neurotoxin which causes Ciguatera Fish 
Poisoning. Within hours, my nervous system was damaged, causing constant exhaustion, neurological 
pain, and nausea. This persisted until 2017, when a new medication countered the toxin's effects. After 
two weeks, I woke up with an alertness I hadn't had in a decade. In the year-and-a-half since recovery 
began, I have worked to rehabilitate, regaining most of my pre-toxin health, drastically increased my 
community participation, and written a full-length play. 


I am zealous to contribute to life in Mill Creek because of my love for the place and the people. Here, it
is beautiful, safe, quiet, but with everything you need. We get together like a very large family for 
parades and celebrations, sharing joy and playfulness with our neighbors. The business of the city is 
conducted with humor, respect, and dignity. Living here just feels deeply right. Mill Creek is the place I
have decided to plant and grow, it is my chosen home.


Supplemental Questions:


The City of Mill Creek operates under a Council-Manager form of government. In this form of 
government, the role of a councilmember is to provide policy direction, establish goals and priorities, 
determine spending parameters through the biennial budget process and provide governance oversight.
What background or experience do you feel you would bring to the City Council that would make you a
good City Councilmember?


Ten years of disability were as full of experiences and skill acquisition as a career over the same time 
period. First, I started a business that was within my new capabilities. This incorporated writing, 
performance, audio recording/editing, marketing, website maintenance, and responsibility for all 
problem solving. I am proud to have learned and used these skills to support myself from home, when 
eliminated from the traditional job market, with over $500,000 in gross sales over ten years.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 15 of 57







The daily lessons of being sick have had an impact on my character for which I am deeply grateful. I 
am  more resilient, strong and compassionate for having consistently faced and overcome challenges. I 
developed greater sensitivity to the ways various disabilities impact participation in public life. I have 
become someone who always smiles, who is always excited to see everyone, because I'm thrilled to be 
there. 


My condition also gifted me an extraordinary amount of time to study anything of interest. I have 
always been fast to acquire knowledge, and I honed my skill at finding multiple credible sources and 
familiarizing myself quickly with the basics of any topic. As a curious person, this has led to a wide 
and always-growing breadth of knowledge. I have also developed a thorough depth of knowledge about
systemic inequality between groups.


To improve my ability to be a good councilmember, I created a course of self-study to prepare.  (A full 
list is attached as Appendix: Self-study Bibliography.) A primary focus area has been the study of city 
management, to prepare for the hiring process. I have developed a sense of what I would like to find in 
a candidate, based on what well-respected city managers teach.


Because The Farm is one of the major matters the council will engage with this year, my experience as 
an apartment resident is particularly relevant. Without a perspective that represents the one in three Mill
Creek residents who choose multi-unit housing, there is a danger of operating from incorrect notions 
about that sizable, and growing, demographic. 


How would you describe your communication and working style? How would your communication and
working style enhance and foster a positive and collaborative working relationship among the Council 
and between the Council and the City Manager? 


The keystone of my collaborative style is emotional intelligence. Most team projects that fail do so, not
because the necessary skills weren't present, but because of avoidable interpersonal conflict. By 
empathizing with my teammates, I am better able to understand their challenges and needs, facilitate 
clear communication, and help maintain a mutually supportive, upbeat atmosphere among the group. I 
always look for the chance to inspire individuals to contribute their best, particularly if they haven't 
realized how much they have to offer.


While I prioritize subjective factors in creating a team culture, I am very analytical and objective when 
it comes to planning and execution. Conflicts are avoided by making sure that there is a clear, shared 
understanding between everyone involved, including firm commitments and time frames. Consensus is 
most easily reached when it is based on facts and logic, rather than emotional appeal. The more 
important something is, the more important it is to have thorough, calm, respectful discussions.


Please review the Guiding Principles on page 4 and describe: How, as a member of the City Council, 
would you provide leadership and/or model the STAR values as set forth in the Guiding Principles? 
What ideas do you have that would help the City achieve the goals set forth in the Guiding Principles? 
Whether you would seek to change/ add/remove any goals to the Guiding Principles? Why or Why not?


The Guiding Principles show the character and experiences that make Mill Creek extraordinary.  They 
also reflect my personal values, and the things I want for my community. When I read our Vision and 
our Goals, my only question is, “How can I help?”


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 16 of 57







My idea for more successfully fulfilling our Mission is a more proactive approach to issues of social 
equity. The National League of Cities is currently accepting applications for only two awards: The City 
Cultural Diversity Award, for innovation in proactive inclusivity; and, the WIMG [Women in 
Municipal Government] Leadership Award, offered to promote representation of women in local 
government. Clearly, achievement in contemporary local government requires attention to these 
concerns.


Multiple studies have shown that, in companies, racial and gender diversity is strongly correlated with 
objective measures of success, such as 19% more revenue. With the greater variety of goals 
encompassed by the public sector, the value is even higher. Creating a plan to actively include 
underrepresented groups is not only socially responsible, it is an important path to success.


Each of the STAR values resonates with my personal values, and the ways I would like to contribute to 
the community. 


• Service - Mother Teresa said that “[L]ove in action is service.” Therefore, being of service is 
one of the most critical requirements for a fulfilling and successful life. It is always a blessing to
have the ability to contribute to other people and community. When acting from that place in 
your heart, it is readily seen, and often inspiring.


• Teamwork – Nothing evokes as much pride as working with others to create something beyond 
any individual capability. Some of the traits that make me an excellent teammate are active 
listening, flexibility, compassionately holding myself and others accountable, problem-solving 
skills, and a winning attitude. 


• Accountability – Two important parts of accountability are setting standards for success, and 
creating a plan to meet them. Without regular internal and external evaluation, the basic 
requirements of being accountable to the commitment fail. The hardest and most vital 
performance of Accountability is to apologize when a mistake has been made, and this is 
something I expect in both myself and others.


• Respect - Respect is an intrinsic part of my nature. I empathize strongly, and never lose sight of 
the humanity in others. I am grateful for the foundation of mutual respect I feel with the current 
council. I am committed to discussing issues objectively, without interpersonal prejudice, with 
compassion and decorum. I will listen with an open mind, particularly to those with whom I 
disagree, and consider every voice a valid, valuable contribution.


Do you feel you have sufficient time available to: attend Council meetings, retreats, regular meetings 
with the City Manager and review written materials provided to Councilmembers in order to 
adequately prepare for such meetings? 


Absolutely. I have full control of my calendar, and I am happy to make council duties my scheduling 
priority. I would be proud to take on responsibilities that are burdensome for members who have other 
major time commitments. 


Thank you for taking the time to consider me for this important position.


Carmen Fisher


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 17 of 57







Appendix: Self-study Bibliography


Texts


Kemp, Roger L. Managing America's Cities: A Handbook for Local Government Productivity. 
McFarland & Inc., Publishers: Jefferson, North Carolina (1998).


Leddin, Patrick R.; Moon, Shawn D. Building a Winning Culture in Government: A Blueprint for 
Delivering Success in the Public Sector. Franklin Covey Co.: Salt Lake City, Utah (2018).


Macfarlane, Ann G; Estep, Andrew L. Mastering Council Meetings: A Guidebook for Elected Officials 
and Local Governments. Jurassic Parliament: Seattle, Washington (2013).


Musell, R. Mark. Understanding Government Budgets: A Practical Guide. Routledge: New York, New 
York (2009).


Pickering, John; Brokaw, Gerald; Harnden, Philip; Gardner, Anton. Building High-Performance Local 
Governments: Case Studies in Leadership at all Levels. River Grove Books: Austin, Texas 
(2014).


Powell, Orville W. City Management: Keys to Success. 1st Books Library: Bloomington, Indiana 
(1998).


Strock, James. Serve to Lead 2.0: 21st Century Leaders Manual. Serve to Lead Group: USA (2010, 
2018)


References


Manual of City Governance Policies, Procedures and Guidelines. Mill Creek, Washington (2011).


Municipal Research & Services Center of Washington. Mayor & Councilmember Handbook. 
Association of Washington Cities: Olympia, Washington (2015).


Robert's Rules of Order: Newly Revised, 11th edition. Da Capo Press: Boston, Massachusetts (2011).


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 18 of 57







 


 


City Council Position #2 


 


Candidate 5:  


Richard Huebner 


 


 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 19 of 57







Richard J. Huebner, J.D., M.B.A. 
 | Mill Creek, WA 98012 


Home/Mobile: ( ) -  | Work: ( ) -  
 


 
January 31, 2019 
 
Bob Stowe 
Interim City Manager 
City of Mill Creek 
15728 Main Street 
Mill Creek, WA 98012 
 
Dear Mr. Stowe: 
 
It is my privilege and pleasure to submit my application for consideration to fill to open Mill Creek City Council Position #2. 
As a proud citizen of Mill Creek, employee of Snohomish County, and law school graduate, I would bring the ideal blend 
of civic pride and municipal administrative knowledge and experience to the position. 
 
I am a registered voter in the City of Mill Creek and currently reside in the Hawthorne Apartments, just north of the Mill 
Creek Town Center. I established this residence on November 3, 2017, residing there for approximately 15 months. I 
previously resided in the Woodfern neighborhood of Mill Creek between September 2013 and November 2015 before 
moving into Seattle for convenience during my graduate school studies; I first established residency in Western 
Washington in May 2012, residing in Kennard Corner, just south of the Mill Creek city limits. 
 
I am a native of Selah, Washington and a happy Western Washington transplant. In January 2012 I enrolled in the Seattle 
University Albers School of Business and Economics to pursue a Master of Business Administration, and relocated to the 
area in May 2012 upon securing full-time employment, continuing my graduate school studies in evening classes. In early 
2014 I went back to school full-time, enrolling in the university’s School of Law, and for the next year and half commuted 
daily from Mill Creek to Seattle. I was then, and am again, a proud Mill Creek resident; I chose to relocate to Seattle in 
November 2015 solely for the convenience of escaping the commute, and was pleased to find the opportunity to return to 
Mill Creek after completing both degrees and graduating Seattle University in June 2017. 
 
As mentioned in the preceding paragraph, I am a native of Selah in Central Washington. What I like most about living in 
Mill Creek is the small town atmosphere and feel. Having grown up in a small, primarily residential community, Mill Creek 
provides a sense of safety and familiarity similar to my hometown, while also providing nearly all the general lifestyle 
amenities within either walking or short driving distance. The livability and walkability of Mill Creek is a true source of civic 
pride, and must be maintained and cared for. 
 
During my first residency tenure in the city, I was not able to become civically involved as I was either working full-time 
and enrolled in graduate school, or later enrolled full-time in graduate school and commuting daily into Seattle. When I 
settled again in Mill Creek approximately 15 months ago, I made a personal commitment to become involved in the 
community. I had just started a new job with Snohomish County at that time, and have not yet been able to make good on 
that intent. While I recognize and acknowledge that the jump from being a civically unengaged citizen to a seat on the City 
Council is a significant one, the election of former Councilman Jared Mead to the state legislature created a unique 
opportunity to seek this opportunity for direct involvement. 
 
I seek appointment to the Mill Creek City Council for the opportunity to serve a community I have grown to love and intend 
to make my long-term home, and I believe I bring a unique perspective that will serve the Council and the City well. Firstly, 
from a professional perspective, I am employed by the Snohomish County Department of Parks and Recreation as the 
Tourism Promotion Coordinator. In this role, I administer the Hotel/Motel and Tourism Promotion Area grant programs, 
which support festivals, events and programs aimed at driving tourism to Snohomish County. The City of Mill Creek was a 
recipient of a Hotel/Motel grant in 2018 to support the Memorial Day and Veterans Day festivities, and the Mill Creek 
Business Association will receive a similar grant in 2019 to support the Mill Creek Festival. While I administer the grants 
and manage recipient contracts, I am not involved in selecting which applicants receive funding, so there will not be an 
inherent conflict of interest if I’m appointed to the Council, but this position does provide me with a unique understanding 
of the festivals and events important to the City of Mill Creek. Secondly, from a personal perspective, both my past and 
current residency tenures in Mill Creek have been as a renter. While I have the goal of eventually buying a home in the 
city, I would at current bring a voice representing non-home owning citizens of Mill Creek, a demographic I believe is 
underserved on the Council. 
 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 20 of 57







Thank you for your time and consideration of my application for the vacant Mill Creek City Council Position #2. I would be 
honored to be considered by the Council for an interview for the position. 
 
My responses to the supplemental applications will follow on the subsequent pages. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Richard J. Huebner 
  


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 21 of 57







Richard J. Huebner, J.D., M.B.A. 
 | Mill Creek, WA 98012 


Home/Mobile: (  | Work: (  
 


 
Responses to Supplemental Questions 
 


1. As both an undergraduate and law school student, I have extensively studied the various forms of municipal 
government, including the Council-Manager form. I recognize that under such a form of government, the Council 
is the body that sets city policy, passes city legislation, enacts spending parameters and the city budget, and 
provides direction and oversight to the City Manager, who is, in most instances, the Council’s only direct 
employee, with all other city staff reporting directly to the Manager. 


 
I believe that my current employment position with Snohomish County has prepared me for success as a Council 
member under this governmental form. While Snohomish County’s chief executive office is an elected position 
rather than an appointed one, the County Council plays a similar role in governance as the Mill Creek City 
Council. Operating as a staff member under a similar council oversight structure, I have assisted in the planning 
and management of the annual budget of the Parks and Recreation Department’s Tourism Division. I have also 
prepared numerous county contracts and submitted them for review and approval to the County Council, 
providing detailed descriptions of the work to be completed and the budgetary impacts of the proposed 
agreement. I have also assisted the Tourism Division Manager as we prepared draft legislation and interlocal 
agreements to enact an increase in the Snohomish County Tourism Promotion Area assessment from $1.00 to 
$2.00 per hotel room night. 
 
Through my background and experience in preparing proposed municipal contracts, interlocal agreements and 
draft legislation, I have developed the skill of analyzing such a proposal from the position of the elected official 
and considered what they would want and/or need to know in order to make an informed decision. I would bring 
my knowledge of municipal governance and structure, as well as my ability to consider all necessary details of an 
item submitted for council consideration, to my role as a Mill Creek City Councilmember. 
 


2. Throughout my professional experience, I found my greatest successes and opportunities for growth when 
working in a team-oriented environment with open and respectful communication. I would describe my 
communication style as just that, open and respectful, and my working style as team-oriented. Such styles allow 
multiple viewpoints to be considered and the best possible outcome determined through majority agreement.  
 


3. In many instances I have developed an idea or potential approach to solving a problem only to learn that a 
colleague has either a better idea or a suggestion to make my initial idea even better or more efficient. I firmly 
believe that collaboration makes all undertakings more likely to succeed. Successful collaboration requires open 
and respectful communication, which is my preferred and standard form of communication. This approach is also 
best suited for municipal governance, in which the members of the City Council must maintain professional 
respect in order to ensure the smooth operation of the City, but must also be able to be open and honest with 
each other when they may not agree, in order to offer a potentially better alternative. If appointed to the City 
Council, I will endeavor to develop respectful and honest working relationships with my Council colleagues. 
 
A team-oriented working style is also vital in the success governance of a city. Under Mill Creek’s form of 
government, the Council makes policy and the City Manager and his or her staff carry it out. In order to ensure 
that policy is carried out in keeping with the Council’s vision, open communication must exist between the Council 
and the Manager to ensure mutual understanding of the enacted policies and goals.  
 
Utilizing my personally preferred communication and working styles will enable me to build collaborative working 
relationships with my Council colleagues and the City Manager to ensure the City of Mill Creek operates smoothly 
and successfully. 
 


4. As referenced in my response above, two of the STAR principles, Teamwork and Respect, are guiding principles 
of my personal communication and working styles. I seek to model these principles in my daily professional 
endeavors and will bring the same goals to my work as a Mill Creek City Councilmember. I will also provide 
leadership in terms of these principles by encouraging my colleagues to model these Principles as well. 


 
Service and Accountability are equally important principles. A city is charted to provide and safeguard the 
essential services required by all citizens. I was raised in a family with a strong sense of public service, and I 
count military veterans, law enforcement professionals and community developers among my immediate family. 
Upon completion of my graduate school pursuits, I chose to pursue a career in public service as a result of the 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 22 of 57







values instilled in me throughout my life by those closest to me. I am seeking appointment to the Mill Creek City 
Council to be of further service to the community I have chosen as my own. I will certain endeavor to provide 
leadership in the area of Service. 
 
Very much related is my belief in the Principle of Accountability. As a direct result of having military veterans and 
law enforcement professionals among my immediate family, I was held to a high standard of accountability 
throughout my formative years, and have retained that high standard for myself as an adult. As a city, and most 
especially for its elected and appointed leaders, accountability is paramount. The goals, principles and spending 
plans of the city must ultimately be accountable to the citizens of the city, whose taxes pay for such plans and 
services. As a City Councilmember, I will remember the importance of accountability with every decision I make, 
and in making each decision do so in what I truly believe is the best interests of the city and its citizens. 
 
I fully believe that all four of the Principles are vital for successful municipal governance, and will endeavor as a 
City Councilmember to both model and provide leadership in all of them. 
 
While certainly not revolutionary in the world of municipal governance, the primary idea I have in helping ensure 
the City achieves its goals and stays true to its Guiding Principles is by listening to my constituents. Engaging and 
soliciting feedback from the City’s private citizenry is the best way for its leaders to know if they’re on track in 
meeting the goals and in staying true to the Guiding Principles. In order to ensure my constituents are heard, I 
would not only encourage active use of the Public Comment period at Council meetings, but would hold regular 
office hours during which citizens may not generally have access to their City leaders would be encouraged to 
meet with me to express concerns and share ideas. 
 
I would not remove any of the Goals from the Guiding Principles because I believe that all are vital for the health 
and vitality of the City. However, to these Goals I would add one additional: Transparency. There can be no 
argument that 2018 was a difficult year for the City of Mill Creek. What made the past year increasingly difficult as 
a citizen was the lack of transparency by the City to its citizens on many of the issues the city dealt with. As a law 
school graduate, I understand and believe in the importance of protecting the interests and assets of the City, and 
that confidentiality is required in some instances while circumstances are ongoing. But one of the Star Values of 
the City is Accountability, and upon the conclusion of a set of circumstances, the City must be Accountable to the 
citizens on how and why the actions taken by the City were in furtherance of protecting such interests and were in 
good stewardship of such assets. Transparency should be a goal of every governmental agency, and I would 
incorporate it into the Guiding Principles to show the City’s commitment to this important objective. 
 


5. I believe strongly that I have the sufficient time to fulfill the responsibilities of a City Councilmember to attend 
Council meetings and retreats, to meet regularly with the City Manager and to review written documentation in 
advance of meetings. 


 
In my current position with Snohomish County, I facilitate the monthly meeting of the Tourism Promotion Area. 
This body meets on the third Tuesday of the month, which ensures no conflict between this professional 
responsibility and the duty of a Councilmember to attend meetings on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays. 
Additionally, I am a salaried non-exempt staff member of Snohomish County, a status that ensures I work no 
more than 40 hours per week, generally in the standard 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. window; my commute from my 
residence to my professional office at Willis Tucker Park averages 15 minutes, a timeframe that ensures my 
ability to reach City Hall when in advance of the 6:00 p.m. meeting start time. The standard work day and week 
also provides me ample time in the evenings and on weekends to review written materials to ensure I am fully 
informed on such matters in order to participate in discussion and decision-making at Council meetings. 
 
My work schedule also allows for the ability to attend regular meetings with the City Manager. I have the ability in 
an average workday to take a lunch break anytime between a starting time of 11:00 a.m. and a concluding time of 
4:00 p.m., which provides the flexibility to schedule meetings of mutual convenience in my schedule and that of 
the City Manager. Additionally, I regularly accrue paid vacation leave, which I am willing and able to utilize to 
further ensure my attendance at meetings with the City Manager and at City Council retreats.  


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 23 of 57







 


 


City Council Position #2 


 


Candidate 6:  


Neal Shulman 


 


Not available to interview.  


 
 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 24 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 25 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 26 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 27 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 28 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 29 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 30 of 57







 


 


City Council Position #2 


 


Candidate 7:  


Stephanie Vignal 


 


 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 31 of 57







Stephanie Vignal 
  


Mill Creek WA 98012 
 


Former Property Manager at Meridian Realty Services 
B.S. in Business Administration from Gardner-Webb University 
I have lived in Mill Creek for 3 ½ years. 
I am a registered voter in Mill Creek city limits. 
 
 
My family moved to Mill Creek from Winston-Salem, North Carolina in the spring of 2015.  We had spent 
time researching where we would like to live and once we were expecting we knew that Mill Creek was 
where we wanted to raise our family. We fell in love with the beautiful parks and interconnecting trails 
and knew our daughter would thrive here.  
 
Since moving to Mill Creek I have looked for opportunities to serve the community that we love. I have 
volunteered with my daughter’s pre-school and helped with fundraising. I am currently a member of the 
Parks and Recreation Board and appreciate the opportunity the position gives me to serve. My family 
enjoys the welcoming atmosphere that has been fostered here and the ability to walk to events such as 
the Mill Creek Festival and the Veterans and Santa Parades.  
 
The thing that I like the most about living in our city is the availability of the diverse parks where my 
daughter and I spend our time. We have a variety of options and the sidewalks and trails make it a 
pleasure to get outside even on a dreary day. 
 
I am interested in being appointed to the City Council because I have a desire to serve the community 
where we have chosen to raise our family. Mill Creek nurtures a sense of community and family 
involvement and I would like to be a part of helping to maintain what makes it unique while looking 
forward to the future my daughter will enjoy here. 
 
 
Sincerely, 


Stephanie Vignal 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 32 of 57







Supplemental Questions 
 
The City of Mill Creek operates under a Council-Manager form of government.  In this form of 
government, the role of a councilmember is to provide policy direction, establish goals and priorities, 
determine spending parameters through the biennial budget process and provide governance 
oversight. What background or experience do you feel you would bring to the City Council that would 
make you a good City Councilmember? 
 
I feel that I would be a good City Councilmember for many reasons. I have a servant’s heart and feel that 
the City Council is here to serve our residents. I have a familiarity with operating under a budget and my 
experience managing Homeowner’s Associations has prepared me for the Council-Manager form of 
government. As a Property Manager I was responsible for overseeing the annual budget and identifying 
areas of concern that needed to be addressed. I have a proven track record of being able to work with 
people from diverse backgrounds to solve problems and feel this is an asset for a successful 
councilmember. 
 
How would you describe your communication and working style? 
 
My communication and working style would best be described as collaborative. I clarify my 
understanding of issues while striving to see where others are coming from and come to a mutual 
agreement. I feel it is important to create an environment where all individuals feel respected and 
heard. 
 
How would your communication and working style enhance and foster a positive and collaborative 
working relationship among the Council and between the Council and the City Manager? 
 
My communication and working style is centered on collaboration. I would listen to the experience and 
opinions of Council members and the City Manager before making decisions and strive for areas where 
common ground can be found when in disagreement. I feel it is essential to have mutual respect with 
both the City Manager and other Council members and to remember that the Council is here to advise 
and the City Manager is here to execute those plans. 
 
Please review the Guiding Principles on page 4 and describe: 
 


 How, as a member of the City Council, would you provide leadership and/or model the STAR 
values as set forth in the Guiding Principles? 
 
I would provide leadership and model the STAR values through my strong background of 
providing excellence in service to our community. I would model the principles by being a team 
player who values differences in opinions and backgrounds and feel these differences are what 
make us stronger. I am a hard worker who takes accountability for my own actions and believe 
in being thoroughly prepared to discuss all items that come before the Council.   


 


 What ideas do you have that would help the City achieve the goals set forth in the Guiding 
Principles? 
To help the City achieve its goals I would become involved with organizations that would help 
promote our City at a regional and state wide level. The city holds many family friendly events 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 33 of 57







that foster community and I would strive to continue this approach while maintaining the parks 
and greenspace that have made Mill Creek the desirable community it is.  
 


 Whether you would seek to change/ add/remove any goals to the Guiding Principles? Why or 
Why not?  
 


I would not seek to change, add or remove any of the goals set forth in the Guiding Principles. I 
feel that each of the goals as laid out is an important cornerstone of maintaining our 
community. It is important to balance fiscal responsibility with public safety and preserving the 
community’s appearance. Economic prosperity is important to our residents yet it must be done 
in a way that utilizes long term planning so our community does not grow too fast and the land 
we love is protected.  


 


 Do you feel you have sufficient time available to: attend Council meetings, retreats, regular 
meetings with the City Manager and review written materials provided to Councilmembers in 
order to adequately prepare for such meetings? 


 
I feel that I have sufficient time to adequately perform the duties this position requires.  


 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 34 of 57







The City of Mill Creek is accepting letters of 
interest from persons desiring an appointment 
to fill a vacancy on the Mill Creek City Council 
(Position #2). 


About the City Council
The City operates within the Council-Manager form 
of government. The Council consists of seven Council 
members elected at large to four-year terms. Every two 
years, the City Council elects a Mayor and Mayor Pro 
Tem from its members. The Mayor serves as the chair 
of the Council. 


The Council appoints a City Manager to carry out 
the legislative policies the Council develops. The City 
Manager is the Chief Executive Officer of the City. 


The City Council enacts laws and establishes policies 
through the adoption of ordinances and resolutions, 
and develops strategies and objectives designed in 
the City’s mission. Through its legislative actions, the 
Council establishes priorities for the City Manager and 
staff. 


The Council meets on the first, second and fourth 
Tuesday of each month at 6 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers at Mill Creek City Hall South, located at 
15728 Main St.


Accepting Applications for
Mill Creek City Council Position #2


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 35 of 57







Mill Creek City Council Position #2
Term of Appointment
This appointment shall be for a term commencing on 
the date of appointment until certification of the next 
election in November 2019.


Minimum Requirements
To be considered, applicants must meet the following 
minimum requirements:


• The applicant must have been a resident of the 
City of Mill Creek for at least one year immediately 
prior to the time of application (RCW 35A.13.020; 
RCW 35A.12.030).


• The applicant must be registered to vote within the 
City of Mill Creek at the time of application (RCW 
35A.13.020; RCW 35A.12.030).


Application Materials
Each applicant must submit the following to be 
considered:


• A signed letter of interest that sets forth:
o  Name
o  Address
o  Phone (home, work and mobile as      
    applicable)
o  Place of Employment


o  Educational Background
o  Years Lived in City
o  Whether applicant is a registered voter
    in the City of Mill Creek
o  Statement of interest addressing the 
    following:


  Summarize your involvement with 
this or previous communities. Include 
activities on City boards, with City 
events, local community groups, civic 
organizations, youth organizations, etc.


  What do you like most about living 
in the City of Mill Creek?


  Why are you interested in being 
appointed to the City Council?


• Written responses to the following supplemental 
questions.


o  The City of Mill Creek operates under 
a Council-Manager form of government.  
In this form of government, the role of a 
councilmember is to provide policy direction, 
establish goals and priorities, determine 
spending parameters through the biennial 
budget process and provide governance 
oversight. What background or experience 
do you feel you would bring to the City 


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 36 of 57



http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=35A.13.020

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?Cite=35A.12.030

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=35A.13.020

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=35A.13.020

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?Cite=35A.12.030





Council that would make you a good City 
Councilmember?


o  How would you describe your 
communication and working style?  


o  How would your communication and 
working style enhance and foster a positive 
and collaborative working relationship among 
the Council and between the Council and the 
City Manager?


o  Please review the Guiding Principles on page 
4 and describe:


  How, as a member of the City 
Council, would you provide leadership 
and/or model the STAR values as set 
forth in the Guiding Principles?


  What ideas do you have that would 
help the City achieve the goals set forth 
in the Guiding Principles?


  Whether you would seek to change/
add/remove any goals to the Guiding 
Principles? Why or Why not?


o  Do you feel you have sufficient time 
available to: attend Council meetings, 
retreats, regular meetings with the City 
Manager and review written materials 
provided to Councilmembers in order to 
adequately prepare for such meetings?


Compensation and Benefits
Councilmembers receive a monthly stipend of $500 for 
their service. 


The City has a Social Security Replacement Plan 
(the Municipal Employees Benefits Trust), which 
means employees of the City of Mill Creek, including 
Councilmembers, do not contribute to or earn Social 
Security credit while employed with the City.


Application Process
Applicants must submit their complete application 
to the City Manager of the City of Mill Creek at Mill 
Creek City Hall South, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, 
WA 98012 or at citymanager@cityofmillcreek.com. 
Application materials must be received by 5:00 
p.m. on Thursday, January 31, 2019. Faxes 
and postmarks will not be accepted. Applicants 
are responsible for verifying the City has received 
applications submitted by electronic mail.  


The Mill Creek City Council will begin interviewing 
applicants at approximately 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
February 5, 2019. Depending on the number of 
applicants, additional interviews may be conducted.


Questions regarding the application process should 
be submitted in writing or via electronic mail to the 
City Manager at Mill Creek City Hall South, 15728 
Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 or at citymanager@
cityofmillcreek.com. Only written questions will be 
accepted. Questions and responses will be posted 
on the City’s website for the benefit of all applicants: 
www.cityofmillcreek.com/councilvacancies.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 37 of 57



mailto:citymanager%40cityofmillcreek.com?subject=

mailto:citymanager%40cityofmillcreek.com?subject=

mailto:citymanager%40cityofmillcreek.com?subject=

http://www.cityofmillcreek.com/councilvacancies





GOALS


City of Mill Creek 
Guiding Principles


VISION
Mill Creek will be a City where everyone works 
together to foster an exceptional community 
experience -- a place where people are safe, 


the natural beauty is preserved, neighborhoods 
flourish, businesses thrive and recreational 


opportunities abound.


MISSION
Mill Creek’s mission is to set the standard of 


excellence for local government. Through dynamic 
and innovative strategies, we provide outstanding 
public services in a fiscally responsible manner to 


promote a safe, active and vibrant City.


STAR VALUES
Service
Through continuous improvement, 
innovation, creativity, professional 
competence and hard work, 
we enthusiastically provide 
outstanding service to all 
customers, internal and external.


Teamwork
In order to support our shared 
goals and successes, we teach, 
learn from, collaborate and 
cooperate with others, while being 
flexible, adaptable and inclusive.


Accountability
We are responsible for our 
actions and decisions, and 
always portray honesty, integrity, 
transparency and leadership in 
our contributions.


Respect
We take pride in our work and 
accomplishments, and in the work 
and accomplishments of others. 
We support an environment that 
honors the value and dignity of 
all individuals.


Fiscal Responsibility
To responsibly manage the City’s 
financial resources to provide 
quality public services, cultivate 
economic prosperity, and 
maintain a sustainable budget.
Community Preservation
To support the development, 
maintenance and revitalization 
of public and private property to 
ensure the continuation of Mill 
Creek as a safe, clean and well-
maintained community.
Civic Pride
To achieve strong community 
spirit by promoting active civic 
participation, public-private 
partnerships and transparency in 
government.
Customer Service
To provide excellent service to 
all who interact with the City by 
recruiting, training and retaining 
a skilled, innovative and dynamic 
workforce.
Recreational Opportunities
To facilitate diverse recreational 
opportunities for people of all 
ages.


Public Safety
To protect the life, health and 
property of residents, visitors 
and businesses through the 
delivery of community focused 
public safety services.
Economic Prosperity
To engage in proactive 
economic development efforts 
that result in a robust local 
economy and position the City 
as a destination of choice.
Leadership
To influence regional, state 
and national matters impacting 
our community through the 
engagement of staff and 
elected officials.
Long Term Planning
To maintain the City’s special 
community character by 
carefully evaluating future 
opportunities for short and 
long term benefits in order to 
protect land use, infrastructure, 
economic development and 
service delivery standards.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


City Council Interviews and Appointment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 38 of 57







MlirCreek Agenda Item # D
WASHINGTON Meeting Date: February 5, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES POLICY UPDATE


PROPOSED MOTION:


Adoption of the Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services - Update and replacing


City Policy CCP 96-002.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


City Policy CCP 96-002 ("CP 96-002") needs to be updated and replaced to properly reflect state
law, the current market rates for goods and services, and to clarify how the City will seek goods


and services.


CCP 96-002 was originally adopted in 1996 and later amended in 2007 and again in 2011. CCP
96-002's current dollar thresholds for procuring goods and services is extremely low and


promote ambiguous limits for competitive bidding. Currently, three telephone quotes are


required for purchases between $1,500 and $7,500 while purchases between $7,500 and $15,000
require written quotations. Purchases above $15,000 are governed by the Revised Code of


Washington (RCW). However, this reference is incorrect for code cities with a population


greater than 20,000, such as Mill Creek, because in such cities only public works purchases are


governed by state statute.


The proposed policy updates contained in City Policy 300-02 reflect current market rates for


goods and services, provide specific thresholds for competitive bidding, and clarify that only
public works purchases are governed by state statue.


The proposed purchasing limits and requirements are as follows. Purchases below $10,000


simply require direct negotiations, although the policy encourages that every effort should be
made to receive the best possible price. Purchases greater than $10,000 but less than $50,000


require three price quotes by telephone or in writing. Purchases greater than $50,000 but less


than $200,000 require competitive bids from an adequate number of sources to ensure
competition. Bids do not need to be sealed but must be in writing. Finally, purchases greater


than $200,000 require sealed competitive bids. In addition, the proposed policy updates clarify
that procurement of goods and services for public works projects are governed by the relevant
state statute.


The need for an updated and revised procurement policy was emphasized when the Police


Department recently initiated the process to replace a police car and a police motorcycle.


{EFM1861534.DOCX;2/05739.000004/}


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 39 of 57







Both of these purchases are above $15,000, so under the existing CCP 96-002, the procurement


would be governed by state statute. However, there are no state law requirements for code cities
over 20,000 procuring goods over $15,000 that are unrelated to a public works project. Thus,


without revising the procurement policy, there would be no policies to guide the procurement of
these vehicles.


Under the proposed policy however, there is a guideline for purchases above $15,000: such


purchases require three price quotes by telephone or in writing. Staff have obtained three
telephone quotes that are attached here. Also attached is a report from the City's Police Chief


describing the benefit of the two equipment purchases.


Staff recommends that Council adopt the proposed Policy 300-02 in order to comply with state
law and ensure more competitive terms and conditions for the City when procuring goods and


services. However, if Council desires additional time to review and discuss the proposed policy,


Staff seeks Council's concurrence with the Staff decision that competitive bidding is not
necessary for the purchase of the police vehicle and motorcycle.


Separate from the proposed procurement policy are the funding sources for the new police
vehicles. The funding for the police car is included in the 2019-2020 Budget, but while revenues


have been included in the 2019-2020 Budget for the police motorcycle, an appropriation has not


been formally made. In order to add this appropriation, Council must make an amendment later
this year or at the mid-biennium review. Thus, Staff asks that Council acknowledge that a future


budget amendment is needed to appropriate the necessary funds for the purchase of the police


motorcycle.


Finally, in light of the needed procurement policy updates, the Interim City Manager is
developing a detailed procurement procedures manual based on City Policy 300-02. The manual


will be provided to Council at a later date.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Adopt the proposed City Policy 300-02 for the Procurement of Goods and Services.


ATTACHMENTS:


• City Policy 300-02 - Procurement of Goods and Services


• CCP 96-002
• Report from Police Chief


Respectfull'y Subrry


Xc^ertS.gtowe'


Interim City Manager


{EFM1861534.DOCX;2/05739.000004/}


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 40 of 57







  


 


 


             


 
Subject 
PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND 
SERVICES  


Index: Finance and Administration 
Number: 300-02 


 
Effective Date: 
Feb. 5, 2019 
 
 


Supersedes: 
CCP  96-002 
November 22, 
2011 


Staff Contact: 
Peggy Lauerman 


Clerk ID Number: 
 


Approved By and 
Date: 


 
1.0 PURPOSE: 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish the procedures for procurement of goods and 
services. 
 
2.0 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: 
 
All City departments/divisions. 
 
3.0 REFERENCE: 


 
• MCMC Chapter 3.02: General Financial Administration 


  
4.0 POLICY 
 
It is the policy of the City of Mill Creek (“City”) to:  
 
4.1 Use consistent procedures for all departments to procure goods and services for 


City operations to facilitate the most efficient and cost-effective manner of 
procurement 


 
4.2 Procurement shall be made on an impartial basis avoiding any conflict of 


interest.   
 
4.3 All procurement of goods and services shall provide the City with the best quality 


for the best value. 
 
4.4 All purchases are to be made within budgetary limitations and for the purpose of 


the goals and objectives approved in the City’s budget.  Any purchase made that 
is not within budgetary limits shall be pre-approved through a budget amendment 
process. 


 


POLICY FOR PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES 


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 41 of 57



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/MillCreek/#!/MillCreek03/MillCreek0302.html





P a g e  | 2 
 


4.5 All purchases made by the City shall be ultimately approved by the City Council 
through the voucher approval process. 


 
4.6 The Finance Department shall oversee the procurement procedures of the City.  


This oversight responsibility includes monitoring procedures that ensure the fiscal 
responsibility of the City in expending revenues as it relates to the procurement of 
goods and services for City operations.   


 
4.7 The procurement procedures of the City shall be based on guidelines provided by 


the Revised Code of Washington, adopted resolutions and ordinances of the Mill 
Creek City Council, the State Auditor’s Office, and Municipal Research Services 
Center.  


 
 
5.0 DEFINITIONS: 
 
5.1 City: The City of Mill Creek, including any office, department, division, board, 


committee or other entity therein. 
 
5.2 City Council: The elected body of the City of Mill Creek. 
  
5.3 City Manager: The City’s chief executive officer. 
  
5.4 Competitive Bid: A public request for proposals or responsive bids issued by the 


City with the intent that vendors submit their best proposal and compete to provide 
goods or services. 


 
5.5 Finance and Administration Department: The City department responsible for 


the City’s revenue and expenses and overseeing the budget and cash 
management.  


 
5.6 Procurement: The act of obtaining or buying goods and services. 
 
5.7 Quotation: A price proposal or estimate submitted by a supplier or vendor for 


goods or services requested by the City. 
 
5.8 Vendor: A person or company providing goods or services. 
 
6.0 PROCUREMENT APPROVAL LEVELS & ADMINISTRATION: 
 
6.1. The procurement of City goods and services, other than Public Works projects or 


purchases, and other than the procurement of professional architectural or 
engineering services, will be governed by the following: 


 
 


6.1.1 Purchases less than $10,000 may occur by direct negotiations although 
every effort should be made to receive the best possible price.  


 


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 42 of 57







P a g e  | 3 
 


6.1.2 Purchases greater than $10,000 but less than $50,000 require a minimum 
of three (3) price quotations by telephone or in writing.  In the event there is 
only a single vendor that can provide the needed goods or services for 
purchase in this category, then purchases in this category require pre-
approval of the City Manager or designee. 


 
6.1.3 Purchases greater than $50,000 but less than $200,000 require 


competitive bids from an adequate number of sources to ensure 
competition. Bids do not need to be sealed, but shall be in writing.   


 
6.1.4 Purchases greater than $200,000 require competitive sealed bids and 


must be advertised in the City’s official newspaper and on the City 
website.   


 
6.1.5 The City encourages the use of vendors with business locations within Mill 


Creek and will endeavor to contact appropriate Mill Creek vendor(s) when 
seeking price quotations for the procurement of goods or services. 


 
6.2 The Revised Code of Washington governs procurement of all goods and services 


related to public works projects or purchases and the procurement of 
professional architectural or engineering services. 


 
6.3 The City Manager or designee is authorized to develop and maintain an 


administrative procedures manual to implement this policy.  
 


 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 43 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 44 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 45 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 46 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 47 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 48 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 49 of 57







AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services (Bob Sto... Page 50 of 57







 


Tentative Council Meeting Agendas 
Subject to change without notice 


Last updated: January 31, 2019 
 


 


February 12, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due February 4) 


 AWC Center for Quality Communities 


Scholarship Nominee Selection 


 MCMC Amendments – Code Enforcement 


 Exploration Park – Construction Management 


Services Award 


 


February 26, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due February 18) 


 2019 Pavement Marking Award  


 Study Session: Facility Rental Policy  


 Report: Quarterly Financial Report  


 


March 5, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due February 25)  


 Presentation: Bond Introduction 


 Study Session: Compensation Strategies 


 


March 12, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due March 4) 


 Presentation: Waste Management  


 Presentation: Northshore Senior Center 


 


March 22, 2019 


 City Manager Finalists – Community & Staff 


Engagement 


 


March 23, 2019 


 City Manager Finalists – Council Interviews 


 


March 26, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due March 18) 


 Sports Park Concession Stand Contract 


 Bond Resolution  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


FEBRUARY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24  25  26  27  28      


       


MARCH 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24 31 25  26  27  28  29  30  


       


APRIL 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28  29  30          


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #F.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 51 of 57







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion 


 Business signs  


 Business License Fee Increase 


 MCCA storm water discussions  


 Utility Project Management  


 Hotel/Motel Theater Tax  


 Mill Creek Blvd Vision  


 ST3 Stations 


 EGUV Development Agreement 


 SR 96 – Consideration of Speed 


 5G Presentation 


 Legislative Retreat 


 Gold Star Memorial 


 The Farm Development  


 Dobson Remillard Property 


 


MAY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


      1  2  3  4  


       


5  6  7  8  9  10  11  


       


12  13  14  15  16  17  18  


       


19  20  21  22  23  24  25  


       


26  27  28  29  30  31    


       


JUNE 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


            1  


       


2  3  4  5  6  7  8  


       


9  10  11  12  13  14  15  


       


16  17  18  19  20  21  22  


       


23 30 24  25  26  27  28  29  


       


JULY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28  29  30  31        


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #F.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 52 of 57







G


E
da


3&
2


m
?m


m
v_<


=
__ Q


m
m


f<
<


>m
m


o?


>
n_


3§
_m


c.
m


m
o:


.m
m


-E
m


-$
B


.H
_.


_.
<


on
.._


vu
.


.
.


2


3:
8


$.
m


-§
m


-m
Z


m


>
= O


E
m


«
U


m
um


na
m


sn
m


$m
-m


m
3~


$
<


<
>


m
~r


:Z
O


.H
O


Z


_.
..:


_a
m


.w
m


nn
m


m
so


s
m


am
a_


<
_m


m
n_


:u
_<


=
::


nm
m


zo
<


m
::


.m
_.


N
no


un


3m
3c


m
_.


m
_u


_.
m


m
m


:?


U
m


<
E 9


%
.:


._
.<


_m
« Io


m
m


:
32


_.
m


__
n


m
8é


3$
m


nm
us


m
am


<
_m


_:
m


_
<


38
nm


<
m


_m
_.


_‘
no


c:
n_


_ _
~m


E
m


m
m


:§
_<


m


22
_u


«m
m


m
:?


:3
m


1m
<


<
_:


m
\ 9%


m
m


: 2m
m


_m
.


<
_n


m
Q


5:


>
_m


o
_u


_,
m


m
m


=
?


H
os


. .
95


93
22


o.
“n


o3
3c


:_
nm


&
o:


m
m


am
z2


_§
_8


xz
m


nm
s m
m


m
ac


m
m


m
z.


no
33


c:
:<


m
zm


m
m


m
am


s?
no


oa
_:


m
8«


.2
m


m
sq


m
qo


a. m
m


nw
m


m
zo


z
no


oR
=


:m
8«


>
_=


2.
02


.<
oc


E
>


%
_8


2
w


om
a


H
.


n>
_.


_.
._


.o
cr


am
:


_<
_m


3c
m


«
Im


am
:nm


__
m


n_ E
m


B
m


m
qs


m
8


oa
m


wm
a 98


.9
3.


_<
_m


3c
m


G
m


am
m


am
:


<
<


m
_.


m


E
m


m
m


s?m
m:


28
m


_u
o<


m
.


E
.


E
zc


qm
m


_<
_m


3_
m


m
« 9


%
.:


m
m


no
su


m
a


_u
<_<


_m
3c


m
«


_.
m


__
n 3o


<
m


n_
8


m
uu


5<
m


E
m


O
n?


oc
m


q
m


.
N


o.
5.


33
5m


m
m


m 3
82


8.
.


E
m


B
ic


nm
m


E
m


qm
m


u_
u8


<
m


n_ ::
m


:_
3o


:m
_<


.


H
E


.
<


oc
._


._
._


>
_u


<
_m


o_
~<


w
o>


_6
:_


uU
>


._
.m


m


<
o:


E
>


q<
_m


o2
w


om
a 26


.8
_o


cE
m


__
m


.?
m


ag
_.


_m
._


m
o:>_


__
26


2
1m


<
_m


<
<


m
n_ E
m


«m
nm


2_
<


no
3u


_m
H


m
n_m


am
:u


no
3_


_6
m


<
m


2m
om


E
m


<
o:


E
>


...
_<


_m
o2w


om
a. E


O
n?


ou
m


w
E


m
<


oc
E


>
n_


<
_m


o2w
om


a<<
o2


A
m


n_ E
m


._
.2


.=
._


_A o
w


._
.q


m
m


H m
<


m
:~ o


z
_.


_m
__


o<
<


m
m


P
_o


m
_.


gn
_U


m
nm


n_
.3


m
<


o_
c:


nm
m


q _
um


< m
:o


<
m


_3
m3


:_
n:


m
ag


n_
m


m
:S


©
3o


:c
3m


:G
m


m 9:
_o


8_
um


la
.m


ag
E


m
a


m
m


on
_m


_ m
?m


8n
_A


m
_‘_


nm
_.


3m
._


<
_m


._u
:o


.n
_


éa
ag


E
m


co
m


a B
m


ac
m


rn
.m


co
?


O
um


ag
os


vm
um


qc
m


nx
m


sq
ou


m
ag


os
m


$:
E


n_
m


\
<


<
:m


«m
E


m
<.8


o_
A


n_
o:


m
&


o:
m


2.
. c


oo
xm


.
m


ag
oE


m
«


m
_.


_u
u=


m
m


8
m


m
za 8


3_
__


$_
<


m
m


2_
nm


B
m


ac
m


a.
O


um
aa


os
vm


um
w


um
nw


m
ag


o_
um


_.
m


&
o:


mm
E


gE
n_


m
m


m
2m


m
mE


m
o_


oc
m


_
m


<
m


2
§_


:_
§_


3.
m


m
_.


o:
_o .


8
«m


nm
_<


m
m


s_
:<


_§
_o


:
8


<
<


m U
m


<
.


c_
un


o3
_:


m
<


oc
E


>
n_


<
_m


o2m
om


a m
<


m
2m


_:
n_


cn
_m E


m
<


m
nm


E
:.m


U
m


<_u
m


B
n_


m o
n


zo
<


m
3c


m
«


H
o‘


an
<


<
E


u_
o_


:m
m


am
_u


oo
n_ _


u:
<


m
oz


2o
<


m
3c


m
«


N
u.


m
am


E
m


m
m


z?
m


_u
m


_.
m


n_
m


m
ag


._
.«


m
m


_.
6:


q:
m


nm
«m


3o
:<


on
U


m
nm


3_
m


m
w H


.


n#
<


o?
._


=
_Q


m
m


_A
.n


o3
m


m
nm


_u
oo


_n
_u


m
nm


_u
oo


w
.n


o3
\_


<
=


__
Q


m
m


w
<


<
>


._
.<


<
E


”m
n


@
3=


_n
_,


m
m


x<
<


>
H


_.
.m


nm
aE


3n @
Q


n<
o_


..3
=


_n
:m


m
_»


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Staff Park & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2018 Planni... Page 53 of 57







om
m


m_
~


H
<


.
O


_.
.U


m
c?


zm
m


m


am
ca


mn
oo


nm
ag


:0
3


Im
a:


um
;


w
m


na
m


co
c


no
oa


_c
m


8«
__


m
<m
m


za
m


qo
a o


w
m


m
m


c?
m


a
E


m
co


m
a<<


_E
E


m
m


a:E
m


? E
m


m


no
na


os
s 3


3
H


m
ca


m
no


on
m


m_.
_m


a:
3%


m
m%


8.
.8


c<
E


m
co


m
a.


om
m


c
_u


cc
=


n z
m


m
cc


??m
_:


_c
m


no
33


::
#<


m
co


m
m


m
am


c?no
oa


_:
m


.8
«


xz
m


nm
cxm


m
ac


m
m


m
c


«m
3_


:n
_m


a
m


__
co


m
a


B
m


ac
m


a
m


co
c?


E
m


:
«m


m
oo


:m
_c


__
_28


m
o3


o_
m


nm E
m


?m
ic


o
2:


E
m


co
m


:zm
m


cc
m


m
m


m
ug


m
co


cm 22
9


_m
«m


ag
m


a
c<


E
m


<
<


m
m


c_
_6


.8
:m


ag
>


.n
oE


m
<mm


:m
«m


_.
m


O
38


®
_m


m
n‘


m
o<


m
E


3m
:c


._
.c


@
©


_m
m


:‘
w


cc
__


@
_<


_$
cs


m
m


x?
nm


??
m


[?
m


m
c_


m
m


oc
m


-B
m


<
«c


m
7m


oc
on


_l
oc


=
:m


m
ca


B
cm


?
cm


no
3_


o_
m


nm
a


<
<


_.
E


3
m


o a
m


<
mom


m
o_


oo
_c


E
m


2
aw


:m
<


<
B


m
ac


m
a


m
ca


w
m


aa
?u


3m
3c


m
G


E
co


cm
<


m :2
no


3o
_m


.n
m


a E
m


.Q
m


_:
_:


m
._u


_m
m


m
m


m
3m


__
33


.
m


m
m


ac
m


m
m


c
oc


nm
E


m
.Q


m
_:


_:
mc


m
mcm


m
: no


3o
_m


nm
a.


<
.


zm
s.


w
cm


az
m


m
m


xm
<


_m
<


< om
E


m
3%


m
om


aw_
u,


o_
m


no
cc


n_
_3


m
3c


m
«


nm
<


m
_m


: _:
E


m
.n


m
n_
E


m
w


m
<


_m
<


<
9”


E
m


um
._


A w
om


awa
_m


E
m


?c
m


acm
m


:
.m


m
c_


m
n_ m
?E


m
on


no
cm


w m
E


m
m


cc
m


.
no


:o
n_


_3
m


3c
m


«
nm


<
m


_m
: =


28
E


m
a


co
m


a
3m


3c
m


«m
cm


<
m m


xo
am


m
m


a
w


m
m


__
:m


m
om


:2
3.


6
cm


m
ao_


.
E


m
:


S
U


E
=


2
cm


_:
o


$5
..


c<
E


m
Q


2
no


c:
n_


_.
>


3
m


xm
3o


_m
_o


a<
_a


m
a Em


m
w


m
m


m
a?


m
E


m
:m


3_
:m


o_
n


m
x_


o_
o_


.m
co


c
_u


m
E


.
no


c:
n_


_3
m


3c
m


«
nm


<
m


_m
1
m


oo
xm8


E
m


<
_.


nm
_a_


m
E


m
”


E
_m


co
m


a
_o


_m
<


m
S


E
m


_<
=


__ Q
m


m
x


no
33


:_
._


:<
.


m
a


8
«m


m
m


_<
m


m
_m


1.
n_


nm
.o


o: o
:


m
am


n_
m


_o
cm 8


83
m


.8
:3


ow
8


_u
:m


n.
8«


om
no


aa
ca


nm
co


cmm
ca


_<
_m


E
m


c:
mm


os
. 31


0
Q


qm
n?


ow


3%
:2


8
E


m
?


E
m


m
xo


_o
«m


:o
:


_u
m


E
ca


.m
cm


iu
29


52
8


Q
2


no
::


n_
_


oc
U


m
nm


cc
cm


w or
ow


m
a E


m
_m


.m
m


m
.n


U
m


m
m


ac
m


?S.
_<


_m
3c


m
«


_.
m


=
n ?


m
w


m
?m


cn
m


a
E


m
Q


2
98


%
co


cc
mEm


.“
G


eo
o_


n E
m


cc
am


m
a


_m
m


__
on


m
?m


n_ 8
8:


?
m


a
E


m
.nE


m
co


m
a


o_
m


<
m m
s


S
?o


nm
c?


a_
m


E
m


aa
im


<
m


_:
m


8
E


m
m


mo
cc


__
n m


om
nm


m
m


ca
co


<
< E


m
<m


am
3m


§m
_:


m
a.


m
m c


m
m


?._.
«m


n_
A


m
<


E
E


m
om


no
cm


w
m


E
m


m
cc


c.n
cm


:m1
m


<
<


_:
m
m


m
w


m
a


E
m


3m
3c


m
G


.8
«m


<
_m


<
<


E
m


83
o.


“E
m


xm
oc


m
m


?
._


4m
n_


A
m


«
ra


n
33


_<
_m


_.
nc N


o3
E


ac
m


c
m


m
o?


m
ac


m
?


B
3


E
m


?
cm


a
cm


m
: E


m
m


m
cn


m
a


c<
no


33
c:


_2
m


cm
m


m
m


am
c?Qq


m
m


no
w


xz
m


nm
cwm


?c
cm


m
m


c.


no
::


n_
_3


m
3c


m
«


nm
<


m
_m


1
co


?m
a


E
m


cm
m


a 8
Q


m
m


?m
m


oa
nm


m
m


.8
a?


m
m


cc
3_


m
m


_o
:m


.


._
.c


m c
om


aw
m


<
_m


<
<


m
a


E
m


oa
nm


m
m


am
m


cc
a?


cc
o83


39
.8


.


_<
_G


._
~m


m
3c


m
m


m
: o


m
m


m
m


a
oc


?
E


m
_u


m
E


.m
._


.o
S


ao
nc


am
c?


<
<


_E
m


o3
3m


c$
_o


a<
_a


m
a c<


co
m


aE
m


ac
m


a
_+


o3
E


m
N


o3
um


am
ac


:
_<


_m
3c


m
G


E
m


a
m


m
xm


a
8


«m
<


_m
<


<


:c
:_


a:
a


m
ca


E
m


nx
m


.n
a3


E
m


E
S


ao
nc


am
c?


m
sa


_o
ox


3.
.


_.
nm


3m
8


_o
1o


:c
N


m
.


_<
_m


3c
m


«
Io


m
m


cm
m


xm
a


E
m


co
m


a3
m


3c
m


a
.8


3%
oa


_.
m


m
$


.n
_.


o3
_o


<
<


-3
m


a=
._


3-
c_


m
_c


o1
o1


?<
2:


E
m


E
m


m
cc


moc
U


m
nm


3c
m


«
m


.


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Staff Park & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2018 Planni... Page 54 of 57







<
H


.


<
=


.


vm
m


m_
m


_<
_m


3c
m


«
_.


m
__


n no
33


m
3m


a
oc


E
m


_3
_o


oA
m


:n
mo


w m
oa


ac
an


m
cc


o
<


<
_E


E
m


_o
cc


__
n


:9
2


am
cm


m m
cc


a?
m


a
m


a
m


aa
w


m
m


m
m


a.
0.


69
9


3%
m


a
_<


_m
3c


m
«


U
co


cm
aa


nc
m


m
m


a
5:


6
m


on
_m


_ 3m
a_


m
.8


oa
sa


m «
m


m
oo


cm
m


m
.8


am
cm


m
.


no
c:


n_
_3


m
3c


m
1


nm
<


m
_m


:


m
xo


qm
m


m
m


a
8


E
m


co
m


a 8
m


:n
o:


_.
m


m
m E


m
_o


cc
__


n
no


m
?m


sa
no


:_
._


n_
_ B
m


m
cc


m
mm
ca


cm
<


m Em
:


oo
3_


o:
m


o:
E


m
qm


no
a. c


oc
cmE


m
aE


m
_<


__
__ Q
m


m
wn


am
m


cmco
_a


E
m


_o
o<


<
m


«


8
_3


om
nn


am
n_


m
_o


:m S
E


m
:


no
33


::
:<


.


_<
__


__ Q
m


m
x
m


oo
nm_um


1A
m


m
m


m
_u


_«
m


n8
«


3%
m


cm
w


m
a


<
<


_E
E


m
co


m
a E


m
.“


E
m


_<
__


__ Q
m


m
x
m


oo
nmom


?
?m


?m
E


na
m


m
m


oa
_o


om
m


_
<


3:
cm


ca
cm


c?
8


no
cc


n_
_ o


c
20


53
.0


2
5.


._
.c


_m
_o


ao
om


m
_


E
m


m
om


m
m


m
a


E
m


m
a3


o¢
m


_<
rm


#E
m


\w
m


1m
m


.o
m


am
3m


m
m


cm
ro


_+
®


Q
8c


m
w


m
.


m
m


na
m


co
:


va
m


:m
33


3m
98


92
3%


m
cm


w
m


a
E


m
aE


m
no


33
::


_n
m


co
c


m
ca


_<
_m


1A
m


cc
m


U
m


om
za


m
cr_:


n_
:n


_E
m


_~
m


Q
m


m
co


:
no


oa
im


?o
w


.m
<m


m
ca


m
:o


3
m


ca
no


33
c:


_.
2


m
cm


m
m


m
am


c?
no


oa
_:


m
.§


am
as


w
m


m
ac


m
m


m
c.


cm
m cm


uc
:


E
m


oa
nm


m
mom


m
xm


3_
:_


:m
E


m
Q


ax
m


«m
Q


m
m


co
:m


_


om
m


zc
m


m
m


ca
_o


o:
cu


8
m


aa B
oa


oo
oo


zc
ca


m
m


aw
m


__ m
oma


m
3o


m
=


m
_o


c_
nm


.
Q


?m
nn


ow


5%
ow


m
m


m
c?


m
a


E
m


co
m


a<<
_E


E
m


o_
oo


o_
.E


:_
€8


m
cm


?m S
oc


;
2:


E
cm


? E
m


<<
<


oc
_a


E
8


8
m


m
mE


m
Q


2
om


m
:_<_


m
3c


m
«m


E
m


a
m


m
xm


a
.8


c_
.3


o
qm


no
aa


m
ca


m
co


cm
.8


E
m


U
m


nm
cc


cm
?m
B


m
m


gc
m


.


_u
O


_~
._


._
._


m @
00


0
on


._
._


._
m ow


um
z


cm
no


as
m


m
<


m
:$


”
<


m
.n


m
qm


:m
U


m
<_


um
m


g<
E


m
m


oz
m


m
E


am
<


.zo
<


m
3c


m
«


S
.


._
.c


m
no


33
m


3o
?m


c<
m


nm
qm


3o
:<


<
3:


cm
cm


_a
m


m :3
2


_u
m


_.
_A m


mo
m


.3
.


m
ca


E
m


vm
w


m
am


E
._


.o
s5


nm
an


m
w


ao
ss


3m
_:


m
am


a m
nm


ac
o


m
mC


m
.3


.
._


.c
m <


m
.n


m
«m


cm
U


m
<nm


qm
3o


c<
3m


1G
E


m
3%


.
>


c:
_<


m
G


m
2


_n
a3


sa
a


<
<


m
?H


. Q
2


m
om


n_
m


_
m


<
m


:G
_<


_m
:m


om
«c


o:
xm


am
q


cm
m 35


cm
ca


m 8
B


m
ac


3
E


m
om


w
m


am
m


ca E
m


m
aa


_<
_m


G
cm


__m
E


m
sa


sm
nw


m
ca


co
m


:_
_m


H
m


a


oa
nm


q
:2


:
co


in
w


m
m


m
_.


m
<


<
_m


-_
<


_n
nc


oa
.


>
_u


uo
c_


~z
_<


_m
z.


_.
_<


_m
3c


m
«


9%
.:


3o
<


m
a
no


m
nz


oc
a


E
m


B
m


m
cc


um?
Ta


.9
3:


m
m


no
ca


m
a


c<
_<


_m
3c


m
w


_.
m


__
n.._


.c
m


30
:0


:
om


m
m


m
a


c:
m


:_
3o


cm
_<


.E
m


cm
x?


E
m


m
cc


m_m
.§


8_
:_


8
31


U
m


nm
3c


m
a m


. ~0
3‘


m
g m


P
3.


3
E


m
Q


2
_.


_m
__no


c:
n_


_ n
cm


ac
m


a.


m
cc


?m
a


c<
_


m
c.


o3
.


xm
qm


m
co


c n
oo


a3
m


.8
«


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Staff Park & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2018 Planni... Page 55 of 57







CITY OF MILL CREEK
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES


November 15, 2018
Approved January 17, 2019


I. CALL TO ORDER:


Chair Eisner called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.


II. ROLL CALL:


Chair Stan Eisner Staff:
Vice Chair Matthew Nolan Tom Rogers, Planning & Dev. Services Manager
Commissioner Steven Maloney Sherrie Ringstad, Associate Planner
Commissioner Brian Hyatt (absent)
Commissioner Daniel Mills
Commissioner Jennifer Parker (absent)
CommissionerDennis Teschlog (absent)


III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES


PlanningCommission Meeting of October 18,2018


MOTION:Vice Chair Nolan moved, seconded by Commissioner Maloney, to approve the
October 18, 2018 minutes as presented. The motion was approved unanimously.


IV. PUBLIC HEARING


ProposedAmendments to the Mill Creek MunicipalCode (MCMC)
Associate Planner Ringstad noted that the proposedamendments being considered by the
Planning Commission this evening are related to Code Enforcement. She explained that the
responsibility for enforcing the land use code was transferred from the Community Services
Of?cer in the Police Department to the DevelopmentServices Department. Since that time
several issues have come up relating to portions of the MCMC that were not clear or hard to
enforce. She officially entered into the record Planning Commission Resolution 2018-165
with the attached staff report, the staff PowerPointand any public testimony received.
Ms. Ringstad noted that the City Attorney has reviewed and approved the proposed
amendments. The Commission received a presentationand thoroughly discussed the
proposedamendments in study session last month and the Commission’s suggestions have
been incorporated into the Planning Commission’s recommendation to the City Council. She
asked if the Commission would like to hear the staff presentationagain and the Commission
declined.


Chair Eisner opened the public hearing at 7:05 p.m. No publicwas present, so Chair Eisner
closed the public testimony portion of the hearing and openedthe ?oor for Commission
deliberationand/or a motion.


MOTION: Commissioner Mills moved, seconded by Commissioner Maloney, to adopt Resolution
2018-165 recommending approval to the City Council of the proposed Code


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Staff Park & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2018 Planni... Page 56 of 57







Planning Commission Minutes
November 15, 2018
Page 2


Enforcementamendments to the Mill Creek Municipal Code as contained in the staff
report. The motion was approved unanimously.


V. WORK SESSION
Development Services Manager Tom Rogers mentioned that Code Amendments related to 5G
Wireless Facilities will be on the Commission’s work program in the coming months. He
explained that staff recently viewed a PowerPoint on small cell wireless facilities prepared by
Ogden, Murphy Wallace, the City’s attorney’s oftice. Elana Zana is the lead attorney on this issue
and staff has been in communication with her. Mr. Rogers stated that the presentation contains an
introduction to the topic that he believes will be bene?cial for the Commission.


Following the presentation, the Commission briefly discussed the topic of small cell code
amendments. Development Services Manager Rogers stated that there are a lot ofissues to
consider from the procedural process, to fees, to the aesthetic issues. He stated that we will need
advice from the attorney, and our options will be limited by the FCC regulations.


Vl. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER
Associate Planner Ringstad asked the Commissioners to send her con?rmation that they have
completed the Short Course on Local Planning. She stated that she needs to track the training so
she can give the Commissioners a reminder in four years when it is time to take a refresher.
Ms. Ringstad said that she would send a reminder email with a link to the trainingjust in case
anyone still needs to take the training.


Vll. ADJOURNMENT


MOTION: Chair Eisner adjourned the meeting with the consensus of the Commission at
8:05 p.m.


Submitted by:


Sherri\eRingstad, Associatd


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Staff Park & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2018 Planni... Page 57 of 57





		Agenda

		B. City Council Interviews and Appointment

		D. Adoption of Policy 300-02 for Procurement of Goods and Services

		F. Council Planning Schedule

		G. Park & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes 11-7-18

		G. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 11-15-18




